CO-OPERATIVE & COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE Minutes of the meeting of the Co-operative & Communities Scrutiny Committee held on Wednesday 21st March 2012 at 6.00 pm in the Scrutiny Room, Civic Offices, Telford

PRESENT: Councillors A McClements (Chairman), S Bentley, K Guy and A Jhawar.

Also Present: Cllr A England - Cabinet Member Leisure & Wellbeing, Cllr S Davies - Cabinet Member Environment, Co-operative Council & Partnerships, Cllr Rae Evans, Mike Vout – Urban Townscape Officer, Jules Millington – Information Officer, Delivery & Planning, Roger Lewis – Information Officer, Delivery & Planning, Debrah Byle – Projects Specialist, Jon Power – Delivery & Planning Manager, Paul Shuttleworth – Radio Presenter, Beverley Howard – T & W Volunteer Centre (CVS), Tracy Clarke - Scrutiny Officer and Wendy Buckley – Democratic Services Support Officer.

CCSC-27 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Co-operative & Communities Scrutiny Committee held on the 2nd February 2012 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

CCSC - 28 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillors N England, J Loveridge, K Tomlinson and Scrutiny Co-optee L Baker-Oliver.

CCSC-29 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

None

CCSC - 30 THE CO-OPERATIVE EMPLOYEE COMMISSION

Various reports were presented by Debrah Byle – Projects Specialist, which provided information on how Telford & Wrekin employees believe the organisation should be working and could work better. 87 employees had joined the Employee Commission. Sub-groups were set up to discuss and make proposals in 5 priority areas which were:

- Employee engagement & communication
- Financial management
- Employee volunteering
- Social responsibility
- Skills planning and development

<u>Skills planning and development</u> – The sub group focused on how the council can liberate the untapped potential and unused skills of its employees with the following recommendations:

- Seek council agreement in principle to develop a mentoring scheme based on the sub-group's proposals, which can be costed and implemented subject to available resources.
- Seek council agreement in principle to implement an e-learning system based upon the sub-group's priorities, which can be costed and implemented subject to available resources.

Debrah Byle advised that one objective was to look at skills employees have but are not used particularly recently with restructures and changing roles. It was also explained that a mentoring scheme would help to transfer skills across the council. The mentor pilot scheme was due to start in procurement and contract management. It was hoped that the e-learning could be rolled out to all staff to up-skill and support the workforce. This would be via a phased approach which would be knowledge based learning and would run alongside existing training. Newly appointed apprentices would also begin a mentor scheme in leisure starting in April. It was also intended that all staff would have basic standards and competences from the e-learning based training.

<u>Financial management</u> – The sub-group focused on how employees could be more involved in financial management and business planning. The recommendations were to:

- Raise the profile of the Council spend above £500 with council employees.
- Develop a business planning framework which includes a mechanism to engage employees in the development and delivery of financially and community focussed services.
- The Skills Planning and Development sub-group focus on procurement and contract management skills as part of their recommended mentoring scheme.

In November the group implemented a list to raise awareness of cost and how Telford & Wrekin spend money. Employees were more aware of costs and could check what the employee's particular service area were spending when the amounts were above £500 although any service area could also be checked. It was agreed that it was very important that employees could see this document and that there would be no costs involved to implement this.

<u>Employee engagement and communication</u> – The sub-group focussed on how the Council currently communicates with its employees and how this can be improved. The recommendations from this sub-group were:

- Develop, cost and seek approval to implement mechanisms to improve communication with employees who do not have access to a work-based PC.
- Develop a guidance framework for team briefings for all employees.
- Develop and implement ways of celebrating and recognising success and achievement.
- Develop policies for the future use of Social Media (e.g. Online Communication System and e-me).

Councillors were surprised that 40% of employees did not have access to a p.c. It was hoped to develop access to a computer with the I.T. department looking into costs and the possibility of using the Stirchley Learning & Development Centre as a p.c. drop-in centre. The use of notice boards, messages on payslips and the use of employee 'champions' would also be considered.

There were inconsistencies between Team Briefs across the organisation and a guidance framework was required to ensure consistency regardless of where employees were based. Morale had understandably been affected by the restructure and it was hoped that this could be raised by celebrating successes. Councillor Guy suggested an achievement award could be presented by the Mayor to improve staff morale and to celebrate good work.

<u>Employee volunteering</u> – The sub-group focussed on developing outline proposals and options for an employer supported volunteer scheme at the Council. The recommendations were:

- Develop, cost and seek approval for a volunteering scheme based upon the sub-group's proposals.
- Develop a council volunteering policy across the organisation to ensure consistency for employees who volunteer.
- The volunteering policy should include time to volunteer based on the following:
 - a. A limited amount of paid time e.g. 2 days for employees to take part in special projects that are co-ordinated by the Council.
 - b. Unpaid time for employees to take part in other volunteering activities that links to the signposting element of the volunteering scheme.

The options discussed for employee volunteering were to either agree limited paid time for example 2 days leave or a scheme whereby 1 day would be paid and the other would be unpaid. National volunteering week was due to be held in June which would be a good opportunity to begin the council scheme. It was also hoped that this would increase staff morale. Members suggested that employees with large workloads may struggle to obtain 2 days off work for volunteering. Roger Lewis replied that it was on a volunteer basis and that it would increase morale. Telford & Wrekin already assisted companies with volunteer projects but would coordinate the project for Telford & Wrekin volunteers.

<u>Social Responsibility</u> - The sub-group focussed what social responsibility means and how it can be embedded at the Council. The recommendations were:

- Raise member and employee awareness and understanding to embed social responsibility through the Co-operative Values of: Ownership, Involvement, Openness and Honesty and Fairness and Respect.
- Six months after the social responsibility employee awareness campaigns, evaluate their success.

• Incorporate the principles of the social responsibility model within a business planning framework.

It was felt that social responsibility was an important issue as it affected all the priority areas of the employee commission and that everyone should take responsibility for their own actions. Councillor Guy suggested that information could be put in the Council newsletter where a wider audience could be made aware of the issue. The intention was to develop an implementation plan for recommendations agreed by Cabinet.

CCSC - 31 THE CO-OPERATIVE COUNCIL COMMISSION

The Co-operative Commission was established in September 2011 to involve partners in shaping and moving forward the delivery of a Co-operative Council. Jon Power, Delivery & Planning Manager, presented the reports and recommendations of the Commission's five sub-groups which had focussed on the following themes:

- Employment, Skills and the Economy
- Co-operative Values and Communication
- Volunteering
- Commissioning Services and Procurement
- Image of Telford & Wrekin

Rights & Fairness Telford had run a community forum fro residents to input into the issues associated with each theme. Cabinet would consider the Commission's recommendations on 29th March.

<u>Employment, Skills & the Economy</u> - The group focused on two key areas: attracting businesses into the borough (inward investment and business support) and improving employability. The recommendations were:

- Adopting a more commercial approach to economic development through the development of an Economic Development Board to aid information sharing, monitoring, transparency and accountability.
- 2. Telford and Wrekin Council promotes itself as a Business Winning Council.
- 3. Support employers through the creation of a highly skilled, adaptable workforce equipped for the modern economy through better, more coordinated working between education providers, businesses and the workforce.

There was a discussion about the Board and it was suggested that it should be a partnership between the Council, partners and the public, and that it was crucial to elect Board members able to drive forward the proposals. It was hoped that local colleges and employers could work together with the Board to bring long term employment possibilities and skills to create better job satisfaction.

<u>Commissioning Services and Procurement</u> – The group focused on two main themes; voluntary sector engagement and co-operative procurement. o increase engagement and understanding of the voluntary sector's role and to work co-

operatively to better exploit commissioning/procurement opportunities through the voluntary sector, by:

- 1 Establishing a Voluntary Sector Engagement Group.
- The Council undertaking a review of how and what it procures and commissions with the voluntary and community sector.

Simplifying the procurement process and ensuring that the process is transparent, maximising the benefit to the local economy and community including employment and training opportunities. The council considers looking at alternative service delivery models as appropriate. That the council consider using the Co-operative commission to hold the Council to account to ensure that the Co-operative values, once approved are embedded in all that it does – including procurement. It was suggested that the list of £500 spend had a further column attached to it which gave the name of the supplier of the goods/service.

<u>Volunteering</u> – A strategic volunteering group with representatives from voluntary, public and private sector organisations is established with an initial focus on developing a coordinated approach to developing volunteering around four key areas:

- Promoting volunteering
- Recognising and valuing volunteers
- Promoting and sharing good practice
- · Reducing barriers to volunteering

That the strategic volunteering group considers ways in which the impact of the proposed actions and the work of the group is monitored and evaluated. That Telford & Wrekin Council develops a strategic volunteering policy across the organisation to ensure consistency for volunteers that support the delivery of council services. That the council carry out CRB checks on behalf of small voluntary organisations at a reduced cost.

It was agreed that barriers and red tape needed to be broken down to assist with the recruitment of volunteers. A volunteers week would be held in June 2012 to find out what is available for volunteers within Telford & Wrekin.

<u>Image of Telford & Wrekin</u> – An overarching vision for the image of Telford and Wrekin is adopted as 'improving the image of Telford and Wrekin' to enable the borough to be 'a good place to visit and therefore a good place to live'. The recommendations are:

- The Council, partners and community work together in new (co-operative) ways to enable Telford to become a Conference Town.
- The Council promotes itself as a 'Business winning Council'.
- That the 'joined up' tourism offer in Telford and Wrekin should be improved together with the co-ordination of marketing, PR and visitor information across Telford and Wrekin.
- The council, partners and the community build on existing events and festivals to exploit and promote the assets of Telford and Wrekin, leading to a culturally vibrant place to live, work and visit.

• That Council, partners and the community should work together to promote Civic Pride for residents of Telford and Wrekin.

It was agreed that Telford & Wrekin required good quality hotels with integrated transport to bring in more visitors and conference business. The local taxis and Telford railway station required upgrading to win both business to Telford and residents pride in the town. It was hoped that once visitor numbers increased in Telford then the smaller market towns would also benefit. It was also agreed that there was a lack of nightlife in Telford which was required for conference users.

<u>Co-operative values</u> – The council values were to:

- Be accountable for own actions and empower people with the skills to help themselves.
- Be open and honest in the way we work and make decisions and communicate in a clear, simple and timely way.
- Work together with the community, involve people in decisions that affect their lives and be prepared to listen and take on new ideas.
- Respond to people's needs in a fair and consistent way.

The Council would like the community to:

- Take action and responsibility for themselves and their community to the best of their abilities.
- Be open and honest about what they want to improve in their community.
- Work with and support others, get involved and share their views to help the Council develop the way things are done.
- Respect and care for themselves and others, value the different ideas and skills that people bring and treat each other as equals.

The intention was to develop an implementation plan for recommendations agreed by Cabinet.

CCSC - 32 FORWARD PLAN

It was suggested that the Employee Commission was monitored to maintain momentum and be placed on the forward plan.

RESOLVED – that the Employee Commission be placed on the forward plan.

| T | he | meeting | ended | at | 8.0 | 7pm |
|---|----|---------|-------|----|-----|-----|
| | | | | | | |

| Date: | D. | ~4 | _ | |
|-------|----|----|---|--|

Chairman:

TELFORD & WREKIN COUNCIL

CO-OPERATIVE & COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 8^{TH} AUGUST 2012

2012/14 WORK PROGRAMME

REPORT OF SCRUTINY OFFICER

1.0 PURPOSE

1.1 To enable the Co-operative & Communities Scrutiny Committee to agree the Committee's work programme.

2.0 **RECOMMENDATIONS**

- 2.1 To agree topics for in-depth review for the 2012-14 work programme.
- 2.2 To agree any other minor items for the work programme.

3.0 PREVIOUS MINUTES

3.1 None

4.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

- 4.1 The Scrutiny Management Board met on 4th July 2012 to consider the scrutiny work programme and the suggestions which had been put forward for review. The Board agreed:
 - That there would be a two year work programme, refreshed after 12 months, to allow for continuity of work.
 - The allocation of suggestions to each Scrutiny Committee for further consideration by the Committees, and the endorsement of recommendations made by the Chairmen.
 - That resource would be allocated to support 6 formal meetings per Scrutiny Committee per year, with additional resource allocated by the Scrutiny Management Board according to the demands of the work programme.
 - That the role of the Scrutiny Management Board would include holding Cabinet members to account.
- 4.2 The Scrutiny Management Board acknowledged that the 20% reduction of resources across the organisation had and would continue to impact on capacity to support scrutiny work, and that there was a

- need to plan the work programme with senior officers so that resources for scrutiny could be built into work loads.
- 4.3 The Board also recommended that the approach for scrutiny should be for the Committees to focus on a small number of key issues in detail and at the right time so that scrutiny could have a greater impact on policy development.
- 4.4 The Co-operative & Communities Scrutiny Committee now needs to consider the suggested items to agree the 2012/14 work programme.

5.0 <u>CO-OPERATIVE & COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK</u> PROGRAMME

- 5.1 Appendix 1 sets out the new suggestions and the items carried over from the previous work programme for the Committee to consider for the 2012/14 work programme.
- 5.2 The Chairman has recommended that the Committee selects up to 3 items for in-depth review, and that the reviews will be carried out one at a time to avoid overload and loss of focus. Each review will be scoped at the start to agree the objectives and work the Committee wishes to carry out. The order and timing of reviews will be decided by Members according to the urgency, decision making timetable, legislative timetable and availability of resources for the topics being reviewed. The aim is for scrutiny to be involved at an early stage of decision making to have greater influence and impact
- 5.3 Decisions about the work programme must be agreed by the Committee. As a starting point, the Chairman has indicated her preferred topics for in-depth review, and made suggestions about how other items could be dealt with. These suggestions are shown on Appendix 1. Items not selected for the work programme will be archived, and no scrutiny of these issues will be carried out unless the Committee agree a change to the work programme at a later date.

6.0 EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

There are no specific equal opportunity impacts arising from this report. Equality issues will be considered as part of each review.

7.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

There are no specific environmental impacts arising from this report. Environmental issues will be considered as part of reviews.

8.0 **LEGAL COMMENT**

The proposals accord with the Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 Section 5 of the Council's Constitution and the provisions of the Scrutiny Handbook.

9.0. LINKS WITH CORPORATE PRIORITIES

The Scrutiny Management Board has recommended that items selected for the work programme are linked to the Council's priorities.

10. OPPORTUNITIES AND RISKS

Setting the work programme presents an opportunity to identify work where scrutiny can make an impact on the work of the Council and the services delivered to local people. There is a risk that scrutiny could be tempted to look at too many issues and lose focus and impact.

11. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The work programme will need to be managed within existing resources and adjustments made accordingly to ensure that this is the case. Any financial implications arising from recommendations will be considered as part of the relevant reports and any variances will be reported through financial monitoring.

12. WARD IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific ward implications arising from this report.

13. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Report prepared by Stephanie Jones, Scrutiny Officer 01952 383114

Appendix 1

Suggestions for the Co-operative & Communities Scrutiny Committee

| | Suggestion | Comments and issues for members to consider | Chairman's recommendations | Timing |
|---|--|--|---|---------------------|
| 1 | Co-operative Commission: Review of approach – benefits and risks, where does it fit in the democratic process? Implementation of recommendations | Update to Committee 8 th August. Opportunities for scrutiny will be discussed with the Cabinet Member and officers to help members decide whether this should be included in the work programme. | | |
| 2 | Employee Commission Review of the model - what do staff think? Involvement / barriers / embedding the model. Sharing the TWC model with other authorities Implementation of recommendations | Update to Committee 8 th August. The Chairman has recommended that this is included in the work programme as an in-depth review. A review could include testing Cooperative Values with staff (see suggestion below) Opportunities for scrutiny will be discussed at the meeting on 8 th August. | Recommended for in-depth review. | February onwards |
| 3 | Co-operative Values – is the Council delivering on its values and how is the Council held to account? The Co-operative Commission recommended this comes to scrutiny. | Update to Committee 8 th August. Opportunities for scrutiny will be discussed with the Cabinet Member and officers to help members decide whether this should be included in the work programme. | How the Values are promoted to staff could be included in the above review. | |
| 4 | Adopter Programme • Progress on implementation of projects – | Update to Committee 8 th August. | | |

| F | identify topics for more detailed work. This will include – Single point of contact for businesses to Council Services - update on development of model and progress towards implementation. | Follow-up on previous scrutiny recommendations on First Point for Business Device with other changes to the policy have. | Update report to a Committee meeting. | Anutima |
|---|---|---|--|-------------------------------|
| 5 | Update on impact of changes to leisure concessions | Review whether changes to the policy have delivered the required savings. | Update report at a Committee meeting. | Any time from September |
| 6 | Improvements to customer care | A report is due to go to Cabinet in September on the customer service strategy and action plan. | | |
| 7 | Welfare benefit reforms – how the Council and partners are supporting people through benefit changes. Possible areas to explore: Localisation of Council Tax benefit Impact of benefit changes on communities (shortfalls, benefit cap, LHA reform, universal credit) and welfare assistance. | Timescales for the introduction of benefit reforms has been set by the government. At TWC: Outline options developed by member/officer working group by mid-August Consultation August/September Ratification of preferred option by Cabinet / Full Council in November Go live 1st April 2013 Budget & Finance Scrutiny Committee may scrutinise financial implications for the Council. | Strongly recommended this for in-depth review. Meeting August/September to review Council Tax options and scope further work. | August onwards |
| 8 | Funding for Citizen's Advice Bureau | Potential to involve CAB/voluntary sector in a review of welfare benefit assistance as above. Note on-going work with voluntary and community sector following recommendations by the Cooperative Commission report on Commissioning & Procurement. | | |
| 9 | Commercial opportunities for the Council – and threats – arising from the Localism Act. | Key strategic issue. The Leader announced to Council the creation of a Commercial Enterprise Manager to help the Council develop new income | Possible strategic issue for the Scrutiny Management Board. | |

| | | streams to reduce dependency on grant funding. | | |
|----|--|--|---|--|
| 10 | Social Deprivation – not covered in 2011/12 work programme. Chairman asked for this to be carried forward for re-consideration. | The CYP Scrutiny Committee will be reviewing the impact of early intervention programmes. Details will be confirmed, but could include Strengthening Families, Family Connect, Brookside Children & Family Centre pilot. | Need to avoid duplicating work with other scrutiny committee. Suggested members could attend relevant CYP meetings. | |
| 11 | Community Environmental Projects. This was not covered in 2011/12 work programme; the Chairman has asked for this to be carried forward for re-consideration. | Adopter programme: Environmental Action Teams have been set up in some wards in partnership with parish councils. Need to avoid duplication with existing work. | | |
| 12 | Working with Town & Parish Councils. This was not covered in 2011/12 work programme; the Chairman has asked for this to be carried forward for re-consideration. | New Parish Charter agreed. Parish Forum reviewed. Need to avoid duplication with existing work. | | |